
United Nations 

GEfiERAL 
!SSE~IBLY 
SEVENTH SESSION 
0 fficial Records 

SIXTH COMMITTEE, 318th 
MEETING 

Tuesday, 4 November 1952, at 10.30 a.m. 

Headquarters, New York 

CONTENTS 
Page 

Ways and means for making the evidence of customary international law 
more readily available: report of the Secretary-General (A/2170) (con-
tinued) ...... . ....... . .........• , ....•• , • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 79 

Chairman: Prince WAN WAITHAYAKON (Thailand). 

Ways and means for making the evidence of custo-
mary international law more readily available: 
r~port of the Secretary-General (A/2170) (con· 
tmued) 

[Item 55J* 

1. Mr. RECHENDORFF (Denmark) said that he 
had alw!lys. doubted the necessity and advisability of 
the pubhcatlon of a United Nations juridical yearbook. 
It was debatable whether such a publication should be 
undertaken by the United Nations or should be left to 
other or private organizations. In addition, there seemed 
to be a great deal of uncertainty about the scope of 
such a yearbook and the Secretary-General himself had 
c:;xpressed doubts as to its usefulness. Finally it was 
hkely to be a costly proposition. For all those reasons, 
he wa~ inclined to agree with the United Kingdom 
~elegatt.on that the project should be postponed for the 
tlme bemg. 
~- With regard to the proposal for a consolidated 
m~ex to the League of Nations Treaty Series, he agreed 
:v1th the United Kingdom representative that such an 
mdex would not be sufficiently useful to justify the 
cost and he was convinced that the Fifth Committee 
would oppose the proposal. 
3 .. On the other hand, he supported the proposal for 
a !1st of treaty collections and the proposal for a reper-
toire of the practice of the Security Council, provided 
th_at. the cost of the repertoire remained more or less 
wxthxn the figure quoted in the Secretary-General's re-
port. (A/2170). 

4. ~r. IBRAHIM KHAN (Pakistan) said that in 
keeJ:mg with the view it had expressed at the sixth 
sessxon1 his delegation still felt that while a United 
Nations juridical yearbook would be a useful vehicle 
f?r publishing international arbitral awards and deci-
~Ions of national courts, national legislation should be 
mcluded only if accompanied by a full description of 

*Indicates the item number on the agenda of the General 
Assembly. 

. ~See _Official Records of the General Assembly Sixth Ses-
swn, Stxth Committee, 298th meeting. ' 

79 

the growth of whatever domestic legislation was in-
volved. 
5. It was felt in many quarters that the publication-
which had been supported by the International Law 
Commission and a number of learned institutions-
would be a vast, expensive and difficult undertaking 
which in the end might result in duplication of work 
and consequently represent a waste of effort, time and 
money. Those dangers could and should be avoided. 
One possible way might be, as suggested in the Secre-
tary-General's report, to apply rigid criteria in the 
selection of material. The juridical yearbook would be 
very useful, not only for the reasons stated, but also in 
that it would serve to promote new and progressive 
legislation in various countries. 
6. Mr. BARTOS (Yugoslavia) said that a juridical 
yearbook, compiled along the lines suggested by the 
International Law Commission, would serve the useful 
purpose of codifying the growing number of legal texts 
and decisions of United Nations bodies. They should be 
systematically collected, compared and reconciled with 
one another if the discrepancies occurring in spite of 
the Secretariat's and delegations' efforts were to be 
avoided, and the publication should be accessible not 
only to those working in or near the Organization, but 
also ~o students everywhere. 
7. It was argued that the Secretariat should confine 
itself to work of direct interest to United Nations legal 
bodies and should not undertake costly projects which 
were already being carried on by private institutions. 
But surely the Secretariat was fully entitled to under-
take any work designed to make the evidence of inter-
national customary law more readily available. Such 
work was fully in conformity with Article 1, para-
graph 4, and with the third paragraph of the Preamble 
to the Charter. The publication might be a positive 
contribution towards the accomplishment of the pur-
poses of the Charter and was unlikely to interfere with 
the Secretary-General's other important responsibilities, 
towards the General Assembly and the Security Coun-
cil. In that connexion, he expressed support for the 
Belgian representative's suggestion for a compilation 
of the legal decisions of the General Assembly. 



80 General Assembly-Seventh Session-Sixth Committee 

8. As ~he Fren<:h representative had pointed out at 
the prevmus meeting, personal bias and incompleteness 
were permissible in private compilations but they were 
out ?f the que~tion in a document prepared under the 
ausp1ces ~fan International ?rganiz.ation. That was why 
s.uch projects were of particular mterest to countries 
hke his own,. with limited means, which hitherto had 
d~pended entt~ely on the. publ~cat~on~and frequently 
m1sr~pr~sentat10ns-of pnvate mstttuttons. An objective 
pubhcat10n along t~e lines suggested would go a long 
way towar~s .ens~nng greater respect for international 
law and eltmmatmg many causes of misunderstanding. 
9. So~e representatives had voiced apprehensions 
concer~mg the cost. of the project. However, the real 
expenditure as outhned in the Secretary-General's re-
port would be $166,800 and not, as some representatives 
had warned, $300,000. 
10. In view of the reasons stated, his delegation 
would support any proposal for concrete action at the · 
c~rrent session, while not committing itself to every 
smgle one of the pr?posals in the Secretary-General's 
report: It wa.s also m favour of the preparation of a 
con~ohdate? mdex to the League of Nations Treaty 
~erzes, whtch represented a useful source of interna-
tional law. 

11. Mr. PEREZ PEROZO (Venezuela) said that 
the cost of publishing a United Nations juridical year-
boo~ ha.d to be balanced against the usefulness of the 
publtcat10n. On the whole, his delegation doubted the 
advisability of compiling a juridical yearbook in view 
of the many difficulties pointed out in the Secretariat's 
report. The project was so vast that it was bound 
either to be. incomplete or to cost more than expected 
and to duphcate the work done by other organizations. 
True, the United Nations had published yearbooks on 
ot~er subjects but none so wide in scope. As had been 
pomted out at an earlier meeting, most questions before 
the General Assembly had a legal aspect and if as 
suggested in paragraph 21 of the Secretary-Gene;al's 
report, the juridical yearbook recorded the decisions 
of only. S!Jme .amon~ United Nations bodies, legal mat-
ters anst?g m bodtes .other than those strictly con-
cerned wtth legal questiOns would perhaps be omitted. 
Nor did the Yearbook published by the International 
Court contain sufficiently comprehensive accounts of 
th~ .circumstances leading to requests for advisory 
opm1ons. 
12. He was not convinced that the advantages of a 
juridical yearbook were as yet great enough to offset 
the high cost involved. Not that the project should be 
abandoned altogether; the Secretariat might continue 
with its existing staff, and in consultation with govern-
ments or their delegations assemble legal material suit-
able for publication in a yearbook at some future date. 
It might also use the services of duly authorized 
honorary correspondents. His delegation would sup-
port any draft resolution to that effect. 
13. Mr. ROBINSON (Israel) remarked that the idea 
of a juridical yearbook had become somewhat confused. 
The original plan had been to implement article 24 
of the statute of the International Law Commission by 
publishing, under the auspices of the United Nations, 
current material on customary international law, Sub-
sequently that plan had been expanded to cover not 
only customary international law but also the law of 

the .t!nited Nations. Finally, it had been proposed in 
add1!ton. that th~ .United Nations should sponsor a 
pub~tcatton .descnbmg the very significant new trends 
m mternattonal law. Those three different schemes 
should always be borne in mind during the discussion 
of the proposal for a juridical yearbook. 
14. In view of the somewhat negative approach of the 
Secretary-General's report and the lack of enthusiasm 
manifested in the statements of various delegations, he 
doubted whether a final positive decision could be taken 
at the current session. However, the matter should not 
be shelved completely and further studies should be 
made: Both the report and the debate had given undue 
prommence to the financial implications of the proposal. 
He felt that that emphasis was somewhat out of place 
i_n a public body ?ec~use, although a family had to ad-
JU~t 1ts needs to 1ts mcome, it was surely more appro-
pnate for a public body to adjust its budget to its 
~eeds. The Secretary-General's report treated the ques-
tion o.f financial i.mplications very thoroughly but it did 
not g1ve a sufficiently clear picture of the need for a 
juridical yearbook or yearbooks. 
15. Much had been said about the tests which a juri-
dical yearbook would have to satisfy. It had to be 
complete and at the same time must not include any 
data easily available elsewhere. In a yearbook dealing 
with the law of the United Nations, those two require-
ments could quite well be met if the publication in-
cluded all the material not easily found elsewhere and 
simply referred to other points dealt with in readily 
accessible documents. However, the material was not 
necessarily easily available simply because it had been 
printed. For example, it had taken him a full three 
hours to locate a certain decision of the Administrative 
Tribunal, which was supposed to be readily available 
in the United Nations library. In addition, material 
could not be regarded as readily available to all coun-
tries if it had to be purchased in hard currencies. It 
was of course easy to set standards for new publica-
tions, but it should be pointed out that none of the 
other yearbooks published by the United Nations satis-
fied the standards which had been suggested for the 
juridical yearbook. For example, the United Nations 
Yearbook contained no material which could not be 
found elsewhere and yet no one could deny the useful-
ness of the publication. Furthermore, the suggestion 
that it was unnecessary for the United Nations to pub-
lish significant decisions of national courts relating to 
problems of international law, was based on the as-
sumption that the Annual Digest and Reports of Public 
International Law Cases would always continue to 
exist, whereas in fact its continued existence was ex-
tremely problematic. 
16. The problem could not be solved by a purely tech-
nical approach. The impact of the United Nations on 
international law and the far-reaching developments of 
recent years-some of them due to the influence of the 
United Nations itself-should be given due attention. 
First, the area to which international law was applic-
able had expanded enormously, owing to the emergence 
ot many independent States in recent years. Secondly, 
although those States had only recently gained their 
independence, they were the heirs to ancient civiliza-
tions and some way had to be found to combine their 
ancient traditions with the body of international law as 
developed in modern times. Thirdly, the number of 



318th.Meeting--4 November 1952 81 

questions covered by international law had vastly in-
creased, a development which was reflected in the es-
tablishment of the many specialized agencies of the 
United Nations. Finally, the applicability of interna-
tional law was gaining new dimensions: whereas in 
the past only States and belligerents had been subjects · 
of international law, the United Nations and-in a 
way-the specialized agencies had been held likewise 
to be subjects of international law, as a result of the 
advisory opinion of the International Court of Justice 
on the question of reparations for injuries incurred in 
the service of the United Nations.2 In the process of 
co-ordinating the work of international organizations, 
such bodies as the Technical Assistance Board, which 
was not a single international organization but a com-
bination of such organizations, were created and chal-
lenged the traditional concepts of international law. 
17. The United Nations had not had time to deal 
with those highly significant developments. On the other 
hand, there were disquieting tendencies toward the 
fragmentation of universal international law into na-
tional, continental and ideological blocs. In addition, the 
function of international law in international relations 
was being questioned. A comparison between Profes-
sor Lauterpacht's The Function of Law in the Inter-
national Community and Percy E. Corbett's Law and 
Society in the Relations of States would demonstrate 
the setback suffered by international law in recent 
times. 
18. Attempts at codification were apt to reveal dis-
agreement rather than agreement, but the attempts 
should not be abandoned. It would perhaps, be advisable 
for the United Nations to concentrate, under Article 13 
of the Charter, on points where something of practical 
value could be achieved, rather than on the least promis-
ing aspects of codification. The Legal Department of the 
Secretariat should approach the problem with rather 
less timidity. It might be borne in mind that the Tech-
nical Assistance Programme had been a completely 
revolutionary idea in its field and was working very 

· well in practice. It was high time that some thou~ht was 
given to the possibility of extending technical asststance 
to law in order to help countries which were under-
developed as regards their supply of basic legal docu-
mentation. It might of course be argued that that was 
a task for the United Nations Educational, Scientific 
and Cultural Organization, but the one project which 
UNESCO had undertaken in that field-the publica-
tion of an abstract on international political science-
did not really meet the need. UNESCO was c~mc~rned 
with political science in general rather than wtth mter-
nationallaw in particular. 
19. There was a very definite need for a series of 
abstracts or digests of the various periodicals, books 
and pamphlets dealing with international law. At the 
moment abstracts were made by UNESCO of only 
ten out ~f the forty relevant periodicals and there was 
no provision at ~ll ~or cov~ring bo?ks and pamphlets. 
Not a single penodtcal on mternatwnal law was pub-
lished east of Cairo and countries obviously could not 
be expected to pur~hase every legal publication. Con-
sequently, a series of abstracts would be extremely 
helpful to all countries. 

• See Reparati01~ for, lnjurie~ ~uffered in ~he Service of the 
United Nations, Advtsory optmon of Apnl 11th, 1949, ICJ 
Reports, 1949. 

20. . Although he doubted whether a decision could be 
taken at that session on all three aspects of the proposal 
for a juridical yearbook, he believed that there was 
no reason to delay a decision on the proposal for a 
yearbook covering the law of the United Nations and 
on his own proposal for a series of abstracts covering 
new developments in international law. Accordingly, he 
suggested that the Secretariat should devote special 
attention to those two points with a view to submitting 
a report at the following session of the Assembly. 
21. With regard to the proposed list of treaty collec-
tions, he pointed out that the United Nations had 
already made a start in that direction.· There again, he 
noted that the Secretary-General's report was based on 
the false assumption that the Manual of Collections of 
Treaties and of Collections relating to Treaties by Denys 
P. Myers ( 1922) was readily available. In actual fact, 
the Manual was out of prmt and it was extremely 
difficult to obtain a copy. It was therefore useless to 
suggest the publication of a supplement to a manual 
which was not itself available. In any event, the Manual 
prepared by Myers did not cover treaties exclusively; 
it contained a great deal of material which was of more 
use to the scientific researcher than to the legal prac-
titioner. Some of the collections it listed were of purely 
historical interest. He therefore suggested that instead 
of publishing a supplement to Myers' Manual, the Se-
cretariat should publish a new list omitting the material 
contained in Myers's work which was not strictly 
required by the legal practitioner, and adding any new 
collections issued since 1922. 
22. The Secretariat's outline ·for a repertoire of the 
practice of the Security Council was excellent, althou~h 
of course there would probably have to be changes m 
the plan as the work developed. It was high time that 
some work was undertaken on such . a repertoire, be-
cause . it would be very useful if a conference were 
called to review the Charter in 1955. Indeed it would 
be useful to have a repertoire not only for the Secu:ity 
Council but also for the other organs of the Umted 
Nations and, if possible, a work which would cover 
the application of the Charter as a whole. .. 
23. Mr. HERRERA BAEZ (Dominican Republic) 
said that the Secretary-General's report on the item 
under discussion gave most prominence to the juridical 
yearbook. It quoted the co11_1ments of . go':ernll?ents, 
United. Nations bodies and prtvate orgamzat10ns mter-
ested in international law, all of them being agreed on 
the importance of the publication of a juridical ye~rb~ok 
of the United Nations. The need for such a pubhcatwn 
could not be underestimated; however, the real prob-
lem was its contents. There was admittedly much doubt 
and difference of opinion on that question. In that 
respect the Secretary-General's . report ~ig~t be. re-
garded as making a rather negattve cont:tb?t~on, smce 
it merely expressed views on what t~e JUrtdJcal ye~r­
book should not contain and not be, mstead of statmg 
what the publication should contain. Admittedly, para-
graph 20 of the report _referred to the need for a defi-
nite criterion to determme the contents of the yearbook 
and to govern the selection of the material to be in-
cluded. However, the criterion suggested by the Secre-
tary-General's report in paragraph 21 was too narrow. 
The possibility of duplication between the probable c?n-
tents of the juridical year.boo.k and that of other extst-
ing United Nat~ons pubhcatwns should not be exag-



82 General Assembly-Seventh Sessi~n-Sixth Committee 

gerated. The yearbook should be wider in scope. It 
should cover not only the States Members of the Or-
ganization, but also all the States of the international 
community. Furthermore, so far as national legislative 
provisions were concerned, the yearbook should not be 
confined to the topics recommended for codification to 
the International Law Commission, as paragraph 61 of 
the report suggested. The publication of national legisla-
tion relating to questions of international law also 
affected the problem of the unification of municipal 
law. Nor should the publication of decisions rendered 
by national tribunals be confined exclusively to ques-
tions relating to the United Nations. In that respect 
the co-operation of the national associations for the 
United Nations in each country would be helpful. 
24. \Vith reference to point D of section IV in para-
graph 61 of the report, he said that the yearbook should 
give special scope to the publication of draft conven-
tions and reports adopted by the Inter-American Coun-
cil of Jurists, which furnished valuable evidence of the 
progress of the codification and the progressive develop-
ment of international law in the inter-American region-
al system. 
25. To sum up, his delegation supported the idea of 
the publication of a juridical yearbook of the United 
Nations, and also considered that the possible over-
lapping of its contents with other existing publications 
should not be a cogent reason for rejecting or indefi-
nitely postponing its publication. His delegation also 
supported the proposal of Ecuador that the yearbook 
should be published in Spanish, too. 
26. He added that as a general rule his delegation, in 
making up its mind concerning proposals for publica-
tions by the Secretary-General, had taken into account 
the relative desirability of each proposal from the point 
of view of its financial implications and accordingly 
took the view that the publication of a consolidated 
index to the Leagrte of Nations Treaty Series, being 
a costly proposition, was not justified, since indexes 
to that series were already in existence, though they 
might perhaps be inconvenient to consult. His delega-
tion supported the publication of a list of treaty collec-
tions and of a repertoire of the practice of the Security 
Council, both publications being justified by reason of 
their practical usefulness and necessity and of the low 
cost involved. With respect to the repertoire of the 
practice of the Security Council, the Secretary-General 
in his report had given a tentative outline of the con-
tents of the repertoire, from which an exact idea of the 
publication could be formed. 
27. Mr. QUENTIN-BAXT~R (New. Zealand) 
agreed with many of the prece~mg speakers m. support-
ing the proposals for a rep~rtmre of the practlc_e of the 
Security Council and a b~t of treatJ: collect10ns. In 
deciding on the latter t~e Sn~th Committee should take 
into account the consideratiOns put forward by the 
representative of Israel. 
28 He was not convinced that a consolidated index 
to .the League of Nations Treaty Series should be pre-
pared ; the cost woul~ !ar surpass the advantages de-
rived from it. The decision on that propo~al ~hould not, 
however, prejudice the .continu~d pubhcat10n ?f the 
useful indices to the Umted Nahons Treaty Senes. 
29. The question of a juri?ical yearSbook requiGered car1~­ful examination, for which the ecretary- nera s 

thorough report furnished a suitable basis. In defining 
the scope of the yearbook, possibly in consultation with 
legal experts, the Committee should remember that the 
publication, though unquestionably within the com-
petence of the United Nations, had to satisfy stringent 
standards and be of proved usefulness so as to justify 
the large expenditure involved. The work, being of 
permanent value, should be printed. It should be more: 
than a mere duplication of existing satisfactory publi-
cations. Lastly, there was the possibility, suggested in. 
paragraph 70 of the Secretary-General's report, that 
the gaps in published material to be covered by the: 
yearbook might "better be dealt with by an expansion 
of existing United Nations publications or by the: · 
launching of new special publications of limited scope"~ 

30. Mr. TOUS (Ecuador) said that he would confine: 
his statement to the points in the Secretary-General's 
report upon which there had been general agreement. 
either for or against, in the Sixth Committee. 
31. His delegation was in favour of the publication of 
the list of. treaty collections and the repertoire of the 
practice of the Security Council ; both would offer great 
advantages and could be carried out without any addi-
tional personnel and at a comparatively low printing 
cost. The arguments against the idea of a repertoire 
of Security Council practice (paragraph 102) were the 
very reasons for which his delegation considered that 
it should be published: the procedures of the Security 
Council had never been very clear and the proposed 
publication would do much to explain its work to the: 
world. 
32. The proposed consolidated index to the Leag_ue of 
Nations Treaty Series would be simply a duplication of 
work already being done by the United Nations. It 
might be possible to make some suggestions for the: 
improvement of existing ~et~ods, but the exJ?t!nse of 
the new project was not JUstified and accordmgly he: 
would not support it. 
33. There was a wide divergence of opinion in · the: 
Committee on the subject of the proposed United Na-
tions juridical yearbook. The report was somewhat 
negative on the subject and its conclusions tended. to. 
oe vague, giving a series of alternati~es fro~? wht.ch 
the Committee would have to make tts ch01ce with 
great care. In that connexion, he pointed out that there 
was some discrepancy between the title of the report 
and its contents; to begin with, it wa~ . not ~ade clear-
to whom the evidence of customary mternational. law 
was to be made "more readily available" and, secondly, 
many points in the report were outside the framework 
of customary international law. 
34. He was convinced of the general val~e such. a 
yearbook would have, although it J:?ight differ With 
regard to the method of presentation. If even the-
learned and well-documented International Law Com-
mission felt the need for a United Nations juridical 
yearbook, there could be no doubt of it~ usefulne~s. 
His personal experience had revealed senous gaps m 
the material available to his country. The larger coun-
tries with great libraries at their. disposal might have 
little interest in the proposed pubhcatton, but he would 
appeal to them, on behalf of the less well-equipped 
countries, not to allow the proposal to be abandoned. 
35. Paragraphs 5 to 13 of- the. repor~ des:rib~d the 
origin of the proposal and the shght dtscussion It had 



318th Meeting--4 November 1952 83 

aroused at the fifth and sixth sessions of the General 
Assembly. The Government of Israel had transmitted 
.its obser.vations to the Secretary-General, outlining 
several kmds of material that might be suitable for in-
clu?ion in such a yearbook (paragraph 8), three of 
wh!ch corresponded to suggestions made by the Inter-
natiOnal Law Commission; a new type of material might 
be the judicial findings of the United Nations special-
ized agencies. 
36. The general impression gained from the report on 
the proposed publication was one of discouragement. 
By contrast, his delegation felt that the need for the 
public~tion was especially acute in the under-developed 
countnes and that some action, if only on a limited 
scale, ought to be taken at the current session. Perhaps 
a small sub-committee should be appointed to consider 
the proposed publication in detail. The contents of the 
yearbook ought certainly to be limited in the early 
stages and the Committee would perhaps agree eventu-
ally upon a few of the more useful items, such as sig-
nificant legislative developments in various countries, 
classified in the manner indicated in paragraph 24. 
37. The estimate of the expenditure required for the 
juridical yearbook was admittedly out of the question 
for the first year; however, by concentrating upon a 
few items only it would be possible to reduce the esti-
mate to a maximum of $10,000, and even then to pro-
duce the yearbook in the five working languages, instead 
of in English and French only, as suggested in the 
report. Indeed, the English- and French-speaking coun-
tries did not need the proposed yearbook as much as 
did many countries speaking other languages. 
38. The Ecuadorean delegation would support the joint 
draft resolution before the Committee (A/C.6/L.255) 
but it intended to submit an amendment setting forth 
its ideas concerning the juridical yearbook. 

39. Mr. LIANG (Secretariat) explained that the re-
port presented the proposal for a United Nations juri-
dical yearbook as a maximum project, basing the sug-
gested table of contents in paragraph 61 on the hypothe~ 
sis that the arguments advanced in the preceding para-
graphs had been accepted. Moreover, of the eight topics 
listed in paragraph 24, seven were already receiving the 
attention of the Secretariat and would involve no fur~ 
ther financial obligations; numbers ( 1) to ( 3) had in 
fact already formed the subject of United Nations pu-
blications and work was progressing on numb~rs ( 4) 
to (7). There would therefore be no need to mclude 
those topics in the proposed yearbook, although any 
material received subsequent to the publication of the 
volumes in question could find a place there. It was 
unlikely, however, that much additional material would 
become available in the near future after the greater 
part had appeared in the specific publications. 
40. The main concern of the Secretariat had been to 
provide the most ample material possible for the wid.est 
possible dissemination. In the opinion of the Secretanat, 
the sources of customary international law could best 

Printed in the U.S.A. 

be publicized in the form of specific works rather. than in 
an all-comprehensive juridical yearbook. Any dtsagree-
ment that might exist related not to the v!llue ~f t~e 
material in question but only to the form tn whtch 1t 
should appear. 
41. It had been suggested on more than one occasion 
that the main contents of the juridical yearbook should 
be an analysis of the legal problems of the Uni~ed Na-
tions. That would indeed be a colossal undertakmg and 
the Secretariat, in its report, had endeavoured to .nar-
row the field. The great difficulty of an analysts of 
United Nations legal problems lay in the work of ~epar­
ating legal issues from other issues in items constdered 
by committees other than the Sixth. Hence the reluct-
ance of the Secretariat to undertake so formidable a 
task. 
42. There were various yearbooks that could serve as 
a model for the proposed juridical yearbook, although 
the type of learned article which formed a great part 
of the contents of many yearbooks was unsuitable in a 
United Nations publication. 
43. The representative of Israel had said that the 
continued existence of the Annual Digest and Reports 
of Public International Law Cases, edited by Professor 
Lauterpacht, was problematic. Mr. Liang_ was aware of 
the publication's financial problems and had had the 
idea that, instead of including the decisions in question 
in the juridical yearbook, the United Nations might be 
able to assist the Digest in continuing its publication, in 
accordance with the suggestion of the Institute of Inter-
national Law that as far as the decisions of national 
courts on internati~nallaws were concerned, the United 
Nations might "render more service to international 
law by subsidizing existing publications than by ~nder­
taking similar work" .(A/2170, annex II, SectiOn I, 
para. 3). 
44. The representative of Israel had drawn att~nt~on 
to three different aspects in respect of the comptlahon 
of the juridical yearbook. The Secretariat had already 
taken the first two into consideration and would give 
serious consideration to the third, namely the new de-
velopments in international law. However, in order to 
deal with these developments adequately, the task would 
involve interpretation, analysis and objective criticism 
rather than purely documentary presentation. While 
there might be some documentary material ~m the sub-
ject, this material would not throw l!luch bght on the 
developments which the representative of Israel h~s 
in view unless they were interpreted. A greater contn-
bution to the science of international law could perhaps 
be made by publicists writing in their own names than 
by the inclusion of such matters in a juridical yearbook. 
He fully agreed with the representatives of Israel and 
Ecuador, however, that further consideration should be 
given to the question of a juridical yearbook when more 
ample material was available. It was certainly not the 
intention of the Secretariat that the idea should be 
abandoned. 

The meeting rose at 1.10 p.m. 

M-87092-December 1952-2,125 




